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Overseas company details (Name) =~ () 7 Wg@ oroffcal s

Corporate name of overseas company

Corporate name @

Maxam Tire Internationai Limited

Do you propose to carry on business in the UK under the corperate name as
incorporated in your home state or country, or under an alternative name?

< To register using your corporate name, go to Section A3.
+ To register using an alternative name, go to Section A2.

% Filling in this form
Please complete in typescript {10pt
or above), or in bold black capitals

All fields are mandatory unless
specified or indicated by *

€ This must be the corporate name in
the home state or country in which
the company is incorporated.

Alternative name of overseas company *

Please show the alternative name that the company will use to do business
in the UK.

Alternative name
(if applicable) &

& A company may register an
alternative name under which it
proposes to carry on business in the
United Kingdom under Section 1048
of the Companies Act 2006. Once
registered it is treated as being its
corporate name for the purposes of
faw in the UK.

Overseas company hame restrictions®

This section does not apply to a European Economic Area (EEA) company
registering its corporate name.

Please tick the box only if the propesed company name contains sensitive or
restricted words or expressions that require you to seek comments of a
government department or other specified body.

[ 1 confirm that the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted
words or expressions and that approval, where appropriate, has been
sought of a government department or other specified hody and | attach a
copy of their response.

© Overseas company nhame
restrictions
A list of sensitive or restricted words
or expressions that require consent
can be found in guidance available
on our website:
www.gov.uk/companieshouse
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 2

Overseas company details

Particulars previously delivered

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK establishment. @

+ No Go to Section B2,

3 Yes Please enter the registration number below and then go to Part 5
of the form. Please note the original UK establishment particulars
must be filed up to date.

UK establishment
registration number

B

@ The particulars are: legal form,
identity of register, number in
registration, director and secretaries
details, whether the company is

a credit or financial institution,

[aw, governing law, accounting
requirements, objects, share capital,
constitution, and accounts.

Credit or financial institution

Is the company a credit or financial institution? @

O Yes
No

@ Please tick one box.

Company details

If the company is registered in its country of incorporation, please enter the
details below.

Legal form ©

Limited Company

Country of
incerporation *

Hong Kong

Identity of register
in which it is
registered @

Companies Register

|
Registration number in F’?’?F’T,—”—O—’—[—l—

that register

© Please state whether or not the
company is limited. Please also
include whether the company is
a private or public company if
applicable.

@ This will be the registry where the
company is registered in its parent
country.

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

% Yes Complete Sections B5 and Bé.
+ No Go to Section B6.

Governing law and accounting requirements

Please give the law under which the company is incorporated.

Governing law®

Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hog Kong

Is the company required to prepare, audit and disclose accounting documents
under parent law?

2 Yes Complete the details below.
+No GotoPart 3.

©This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
incorporation of companies in that
state,
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

From

To

Please give the period for which the company is required to prepare accounts by
parent law.

ol

Months

Please give the period allowed for the preparation and public disclosure of
accounts for the above accounting period.

(s

Latest disclosed accounts

Are copies of the latest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please
note if accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if
applicable, with a certified translation.@

Yes.
Please indicate what documents have been disclosed.

Please tick this box if you have enclosed a copy of the accounts.

] Please tick this box if you have enclosed a certified translation of the
accounts.

[T1 Please tick this box if no accounts have been disclosed.

@ Please tick the appropriate box(es).
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 3

Constitution

Constitution of company

The following documents must be delivered with this application.
- Certified copy of the company's constitution and, if applicable, a certified
translation.

Please tick the appropriate box{es) below.
| have enclosed a certified copy of the company's constitution. @
O 1enclose a certified translation, if applicable. @

@ A certified copy is defined as
a copy certified as correct and
authenticated by - the secretary or a
director of the company, permanent
representative, administrator,
administrative receiver, receiver
manager, receiver and liquidator.

B A certified translation into English
must be authenticated by the
secretary or a director of the
company, permanent representative,
administrator, administrative
receiver, feceiver manager, receiver
and liguidator.

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

2 Yes Go to Section (3.
4 No Go to Part 4 ‘Officers of the company".

Constitutional documents

Are all of the following details in the copy of the constitutional documents of the

company?

- Address of principal place of business or registered office in home country
of incarporation

- Objects of the Company

- Amount of issued share capital

2 Yes Go to Part 4 ‘Officers of the company’
< No If any of the above details are not included in the constitutional
documents, please enter them in Section C4.

The information is not required if it is contained within the constitutional

documents accompanying this registration.

Information not included in the constitutional documents

Please give the address of principal place of business or registered office in the
country of incorporation. @

Building name/number

3806 Central Plaza

Street |18 Harbour Road
Post town l
County/Region lWanchai
Postcode l ’7’—’7[7’7’7’7
Country Hong Kong
Please give the objects of the company and the amount of issued share capital.
Objects of the Investment holding to set up a subsidiary in UK for
company &

research, development and sale of tires.

Amount of issued
share capital @

USD1.00

@ This address will appear on the
public record.

0 Please give a brief description of the
company’s business.

O Please specify the amount of shares
issued and the value.

10415 Version 6.0




0S INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 4

Secretary

Officers of the company

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK establishment?

¥ Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section B1
and then go to Part 5 of this form.
3 No Complete the officer details.

For a secretary who is an individual, go to Section D1; for a corporate secretary,
go to Section E%; for a director who is an individual, go to Section F1; or for a
corporate director, go to Section G1.

Continuation pages

Please use a continuation page
if you need to enter maore officer
details.

Secretary details @

Use this section to list all the secretaries of the company.
Please complete Sections D1-D3. For a corporate secretary, complete
Sections E1-E5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.

Fuil forename(s)

Surname

Farmer name(s)®

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter
corporate secretary details.

Former name(s)

Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names)
which have heen used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

2]

Secretary’'s service address®

Building name/number ‘

O Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street l on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
I address.
Post town | If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
County/Region r public record.
Postcode | | I I
Country r
Secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary. Please tick one box. O1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority L provide a brief description of the
O Limited @ limited authority in the box below.
O Unlimited ©If you have indicated that you are

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

| Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
O Jointly @

if applicable, name(s) r

of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly

not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary

Corporate secretary details®

Use this section to list all the corporate secretaries of the company.
Please complete Sections E1-E5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.

Name of corporate
body or firm

IBrinza Limited

Building name/number

3806 Central Plaza

Street FB Harbour Road
|
Post town r
County/Region ﬁVanchai
Postcode __—’_’_’_r—r_l_’_
Country Hong Kong |

@ Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents. It cannot be
a PO box number (unless contained
within a fuil address}, DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number.

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Compiete Section E3 only
+ No Complete Section E4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept (inciuding the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register.

Where the company/
firm is registered ®

-

Registration number

-

@ EEA
A full list of countries of the EEA can
be found in our guidance:
www,gov.uk/companieshouse

©This is the register mentioned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC).

Non-EEA companies

[ Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by
which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
itis entered (including the state) and its registration number in that register.

Legal form of the
corporate body
or firm

IT:’rivate Limited Company

:

Governing law

|Chapter 622 of the lLaws of Hog Kong

If applicable, where
the company/firm is
registered @

|Hong Kong

If applicable, the
registration number

IBusiness Registration no.: 15334507-000

O Non-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register (including state) where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

F Corporate secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate secretary. ©If you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one hox. of your authority s limited, please
s provide a brief description of the
Extent of authori o limited authority in the hox below.
ki Limited @ yinihe
o @|f you have indicated that you are
0 Unlimited not authorised to act alone but only
.@ jointly, please enter the name(s} of
* Description of imited Bs authorised by the Board of Directors from time to time the personis) with whom you are
authority, if applicable — - authorised to act below.
I_Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.
Alone
03 lointly @
If applicable, namefs) ITAIone subject to approval of the Board of Directors
of person(s} with
whom you are r
acting jointly I'
%
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Director

Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s) |Changkun
Surname |J|

Former name{s)® |
Country/State of ‘ China
residence @

Nationality |Chinese

Month/year of birth @ WW FEE’?

Business occupation |Business Executive

{if any) @ ]

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 1o enter
corporate director detaits.

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
{including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purpases in the last 20 years.

& Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F5.

O Month and year of birth
Please provide month and year only.
Provide full date of birth in
section F4.

© Business occupation
if you have a business occupation,
please enter here. If you do not,
please leave blank.

F

Director’s service address @

Building name/number [Vienna House

@Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street | International Square on the public record. This does not
have ta be your usual residential
| Birmingham Internaticnal Park address.
Post town ’ . If you provide your residential
Solihul address here it will appear on the
Countleegion [West Midlands public record.
Postcode Bialz [ s 1Aala
Country rUnited Kingdom
E Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box. @1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority . provide a brief description of the
Limited @ limited authority In the box helow:
0O Unlimited

Description of limited | As authorised by the Board of Directors’ by Resolutions

authority, if applicable

’ Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
O Jointly @

If applicable, namel(s)

of person(s) with
whom you are )

acting jointly '

B f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person(s} with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Corporate director

1

Corporate director details ©

Use this section to list ali the corporate directors of the company.
Please complete G1-G5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.

Name of corporate
body or firm

Building name/number

Street

Post town

County/Region

Postcode

|
-
|
|
|

HEEEENN

Country

@ Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents. It cannot be
a PO box number (unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP {Legal Post in Scotland) number.

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section G3 only
+ No Complete Section G4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept {including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register.

Where the company/
firm is registered®

Registration number

@ EEA
A full list of countries of the EEA can
be found in gur guidance:
www.gov.uk/companieshause

@ This is the register mentioned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC).

6

Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by
which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
it is entered {including the state} and its registration number in that register.

Legal form of the
corporate hody
or firm

Governing law

If applicable, where
the companyffirm is
registered @

If applicable, the
registration number

O Non-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register {including state} where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register
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cs|

Corporate director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate director.
Please tick one box.

Extent of authority

O Limited @
O Unlimited

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

|

‘ Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
O Jointly &

if applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

|

|

91 you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below.

@ |1f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 5 UK establishment details

m Documents previously delivered - constitution

Has the company previously registered a certified copy of the company's
constitution with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?

+ No Goto Section H3.
+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go 1o
Section H2.

UK establishment )T[T’_ ’— ,7’——’— r [—

registration number

Documents previously delivered — accounting documents

Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company's accounting
documents with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?

+ No Goto Section H3.
+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H3.

UK establishment [T!T[_'_‘——[*(-—‘—f—

registration number

Delivery of accounts and reports

This section must be completed, Please state if the company intends to comply
with accounting requirements with respect to this establishment or in respect of
another UK establishment, @

In respect of this establishment. Please go to Section H4.

[ Inrespect of another UK establishment. Please give the registration number
below, then go to Section H4,

UK establishment R T [ T T T

registration number

@ Please tick the appropriate box.

m Particulars of UK establishment @

You must enter the name and address of the UK establishment.

Name of establishmentl Maxm Tire International

;

Building name/number ‘—Vienna House, International Square

Street rStarIey Way

Post town rSolihuII

County/Region rWest Midlands

Postcode ’?F’TFEWF’_
Country ’ England

Please give the date the establishment was opened and the business of the
astablishment.

Date establishment IT’T ’TW SW’TW

opened

Business carried on at

the UK establishment Flmport and Sales of Tyres

@ Address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record.
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 6

Permanent representative

Please enter the name and address of every person autharised to represent the
company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK
establishment.

Permanent representative’s details

Plaase use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company.
Please complete Sections J1-J4.

Full forenamel(s)

I Martin

Surname

West

Continvation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details,

Permanent representative’s service address @

mmg ﬂamelnumber Y VieHna House

Street LTniternational Square

( Birmingham International Park
Post town ‘ Solihuil
County/Region | West Midlands
Postcode 1_8"_3;’71_7—5‘?'7'_“
Country \ United Kingdom

D Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have 1o be your usual residential
address.

if you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record.

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative,
Please tick one hox.

Extent of authority

Limited &
O unlimited

Description of limited IXS authorised by the Board of Directors' by Resolutions

authority, if applicable ‘

I Are you autharised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box,

Alone
O Jointly®

If applicable, nama{s)
of persan{s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

|

-

8if you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below.

©1f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alene but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s} with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 7

Person authorised to accept service

Does the company have any person(s) in the UK authorised to accept service of
documents on behalf of the company in respect of its UK establishment?

3+ Yes Please enter the name and service address of every person(s)
authorised below.
3 No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 "Signature’.

[ f there is no such person, piease tick this box.

Details of person authorised to accept service of documents
in the UK

Please use this section to list all the persens’ authorised to accept service below.
Please complete Sections K1-K2.

Full forenamel(s)

| Anthony

Surname

ﬂrcher

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details.

Service address of person authorised to accept service @

Building name/number F/ienna House

Street mternational Square
l_éirmingham International Park
Post town I_Sohhu”

County/Region

Postcode

ﬁ\lest Midlands

[efaf7 (7 ain] |

Country

ITJnited Kingdom

@ Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
address. Please note, a DX address
would not be acceptable.
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Part 8 Signature
This must be completed by all companies.
I am signing this form on behalf of the company.
Signature Signature \l
X ‘ X
B\ A

This form may be signed by:
Director, Secretary, Permanent representative.

\\
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B Presenter information

nTnportant information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do it will help Companies House if there is a query
on the form. The contact infoermation you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact name

Tony Archer

Company name

Maxm Tire International

Add . .
“*  Vienna House, International Square

‘ Starley Way

|
Solihull

[ County/Region West Midlands

[8laf7[7[aln] [a

England

Post town

Postcode:

Country

DX

Tetephone

0121 767 1925

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the

following:

The overseas corporate name on the form matches
the constitutional documents exactly.

O You have included a copy of the appropriate
correspondence in regard to sensitive words, if

ppropriate.
You have included certified copies and certified
translations of the constitutional documents, if
appropriate.
You have included a copy of the latest disclosed
accounts and certified translations, if appropriate.

You have completed ail of the company details in
Section B3 if the company has not registered an

_ existing establishment,

71 You have complete details for all company
secretaries and directors in Part 4 if the company
has not registered an existing establishment.

1 Any addresses given must be a physical locaticn.
They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part
of a full service address), DX or LP {Legal Post in
Scotland) number.

1 You have completed details for all permanent
representatives in Part 6 and persons authorised to

_accept service in Part 7.
I You have signed the form.
El You have enclosed the correct fee.

Please note that all information on this form
will appear on the public record, apart from
information relating to usual residential
addresses and day of birth.

How to pay

A fee of £20 is payable to Companies House in
respect of a registration of an overseas company.
Make cheques or postal orders payable to

‘Companies House.’

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return it to the appropriate address below:

England and Wales:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ,

DX 33050 Cardiff.

Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF.
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post}.

Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG.

DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

Higher protection

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher
protection, please post this whole form to the
different postal address below:

The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082,

Cardiff, CF14 3WE,

ﬂ Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse
or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

This form has been provided free of charge by Companies House.
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“Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1} of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009,

Secretary

OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Secretary details @

Please use this section to list all the secretaries of the company. Please complete
Sections D1-D3. For a corporate secretary, complete Sections E1-ES.

Full forename(s)

|

Surname

Former name(s)®

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter
corporate secretary details.

& Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

Secretary’s service address®

Building name/number

© Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street | on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
| address.
Post town | If you provide your residential
address here it witl appear on the
County/Region J public record.
Postcode | I I ‘ l I
Country
Secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary. Please tick one box. 0 1f you have indicated that the extent
¥ ry. y!
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority . provide a brief description of the
O Limited @ limited autharity in the box below.
O Unlimited ©@1f you have indicated that you are

Description of limited
authaority, if applicable r

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
O Jointly @

If applicable, name(s)

of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly

not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.

10/15 Version 6.0




I accordance with

samtosone QS INOT - continuation page

Companies Act2006&  Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment
Regulation 4{1} of the

Overseas Companies
Regulations 2409.

Corporate secretary

m Corporate secretary details®

Please use this section to list all the corporate secretaries of the company.
Please complete Sections E1-E5.

Name of corporate |
body or firm

Building name/number

Street

Post town

|

|

|
County/Region r

Postcode

Country

O Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents. It cannat be
a PO box number (unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number.

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section E3 only
+ No Complete Section E4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept {including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register.

Where the company/

firm is registered® |

Registration number I

@ EEA
A full list of countries of the EEA can
be found in our guidance:
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

© This is the register mentioned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC).

m Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by
which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
it is entered {including the state) and its registration number in that register.

Legal form of the

or firm

Governing law

If applicable, where

the company/firm is
registered @

If applicable, the

corporate body |[
|
|
|
registration number |

O Non-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register {including state) where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register
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E Corporate secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate secretary. @ f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box. of your authority is limited, please
_ provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority O Limited © limited authority in the box below.
. @ f you have indicated that you are
O Unlimited not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of limited the persan(s) with whom you are
authority, if applicable - — - authorised to act below.
Rl Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.
O Alone
3 Jointly ®

of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly [

If applicable, name(s) |
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Qverseas Companies
Regulations 2009.

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a cantinuation page if necessary.

Full forenamefs) rMicheIIe
Surname | BAMFORD
Former name(s)® |
Country/State of Canada
residence @

Natianality Eanadian

Month/year of birth @ ’m—OAFET WWF?I—?

Business occupation |Business Executive

{if any) @ ’

@ Corporate details
Piease use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details.

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years,

@ Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usuat
residential address as stated in
Section FS.

© Month and year of birth
Please provide month and year oniy.
Provide full date of hirth in
section F4.

O Business cccupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here. if you do not,
please leave blank,

Director’s service address @

Building name/number | Vienna House

Street I International Square

l Birmingham International Park
Post town | Solikul|
County/Region | West Midlands
Postcode ’?’_;_’7’7’—/\7’?[7“
Country | United Kingdom

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have ta be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public recerd.

Director's authority

Please enter the extent of your autherity as director. Please tick one box.

Extent of authority Limited @
imite

O Unlimited

Description of limited IAs authorised by the Board of Directors by Resolutions

authority, if applicable ri

‘ Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one hox.

Alone
O lointly®

of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

If applicable, name(s)
|
|

@If you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below.

O 1f you have indicated that you are
nat authorised to act alone kut only
jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person{s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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In accordance with

" Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1} of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009.

0S INOT - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate director

Corporate director details ©

Please use this section ta list all the corporate directors of the company.
Please complete Sections G1-G5.

Name of corporate
body or firm

Building name/number

Street

Post town

County/Region

Postcode

|
EENEEEEE

Country

@ Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the public reccrd. This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents. It cannot be
a PO box number (unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number.

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section G3 only
+ No Complete Section G4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept {including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register.

Where the company/
firm is registered ®

O EEA
A full list of countries of the EFA can
be found in our guidance:
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

® This is the register mentioned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law

Registration number "“I_ [_ ’_rr "'| ’— Directive (68/151/EEC).
Non-EEA companies
Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by | @Non-EEA

which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
it is entered (including the state} and its registration number in that register.

Legal form of the
corporate body
or firm

Governing law

If applicable, where
the company/firm is
registered @

If applicable, the
registration number

|
|
|
|
|

rrrrerrerrrrt

Where you have provided details of
the register {including state} where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

E Corporate director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate director.
Please tick one box.

Extent of authority

O Limited @
O Unlimited

Description of limited

authority, if applicable

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
D Jointly @

if applicable, name(s) [

of person(s) with
whom you are |
acting jointly

@ f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below.

@If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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In accordance with

" Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1} of the
Gverseas Companies
Regutations 2009.
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Permanent representative

Permanent representative’s details

Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company.
Please complete Sections J1-J4,

Full forename(s)

Surname

2§

Permanent representative’s service address @

Building name/number |

Street

-

Post town

County/Region

Fostcode

|
1
HEEEEEEE

Country

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record.

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative.
Please tick one box.

Extent of authority

DO Limited @
O Unlimited

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
O Jointly ®

If applicable, namels)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

|
-

O |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the bax below.

©If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person({s} with whom you are
authorised to act below.

10/15 Version 6.0




In a{cmdan‘ce with
" Section 1046 of the

Companies Act 2006 &
Reguiatior 4(1) of the
Qverseas Companies

Regulations 2009.

OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Person authorised

1§

Details of person authorised to accept service of documents

in the UK

Please use this section to list all the persons’ authorised to accept service below.
Please complete Sections K1-K2.

Full forename(s)

Surname

Service address of person authorised to accept service @

Building name/number r

Street

f

Post town

County/Region

Postcode

|
|
|
|

HEEREEEE

Country

@ Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
address. Please note, a DX address
would not be acceptable.

10/15 Version 6.0
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*Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009.

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Secretary

Secretary details®

Please use this section to list all the secretaries of the company. Please complete
Sections D1-D3. For a corporate secretary, complete Sections E1-E5.

Full forename(s}

-

Surname [

Former name(s)®

O Corporate details
Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter
corporate secretary details.

@ Former name{s}
Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

Secretary’s service address®

Building name/number r

8 Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street I on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
r address.
Post town [ If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
County/Region r public record.
Postcode I l ‘
Country
Secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary. Please tick one box. @ If you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority L provide a brief description of the
O Limited ® limited authority in the box below.
O Unlimited @1f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only

Description of limited |

authority, if applicable - — :
.t app | Are you autherised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
O Jointly ®

If applicable, name(s)

of person{s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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meeniooine  OS INO1T - continuation page

CompaniesAct 2006&  Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment
Regulation 4(1) of the

Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009

Corporate secretary

m Corporate secretary details®

Please use this section to list all the corporate secretaries of the company.
Please complete Sections E1-E5,

Name of corporate

body or firm

Building name/number

O Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents. it cannot be
a PO box number {unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP {Legal Post in Scotland} number.

|
Street }7
Post town |[
County/Region r
Postcode
Country
w Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section E3 only
+ No Complete Section E4 only

w EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept {(including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register.

Where the company/
firm is registered ©

Registration number ‘

@ EEA
Afull list of countries of the EEA can
be found in our guidance:
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

@ This is the register mentioned in
Articte 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC).

m Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by
which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
itis entered {including the state) and its registration number in that register.

Legal form of the

corporate body
or firm

Governing law

If applicable, where

registered @

If applicable, the

|

|

E
the company/firm is

r
registration number |

ONon-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register (including state) where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate secretary. O If you have indicated that the extent

Flease tick one box. of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the

Extent of authority

limited authority in the box below.

O Limited @
. @1f you have indicated that you are
O Unlimited not authorised to act alone but anly

jointhy, please enter the name(s) of

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

i the person{s} with whom you are
authorised to act betow.

| Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
0O Jointly @

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

|
I
-
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009.

Director

OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details @

Use this section te list all the directors of the company. Please compiete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s)

|Martin

Surname

|WEST

Former name(s)®

Country/State of
residence ®

United Kingdom

Nationality

Month/year of birth @

|British

W ifele

Business occupation |Business Executive

(if any) ©

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details,

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
{including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

& Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F5.

@ Month and year of birth
Please provide manth and year only.
Provide fult date of birth in
section F4.

@ Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here, If you do not,
please leave blank.

Director's service address®

Building name/number| Vienna House

Street

| International Square

‘ Birmingham International Park

Post town

| Solihull

County/Region

Postcode

IWest Midlands

[efal7l7an] |

Country

|United Kingdom

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
address,

If you provide yaur residential
address here it will appear an the
public record.

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box,

Extent of authority

Limited @
O Unlimited

Description of limited
authority, if applicable [

As authorised by the Board of Directors by Resolutions

i Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
O Jointly @

If applicable, name(s)

of person(s} with
whom you are
acting jointly

[
|
|

@1 you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box betow,

O |f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009.

Corporate director

Corporate director details @
Please use this section to list all the corporate directors of the company. © Registered or principal address
Please complete Sections G1-GS. This is the address that will appear

on the public record. This address
Name of corporate | must be a physical location for the
body or firm delivery of documents. It cannot be
a PO box number (unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number.

Building name/number

Street [

Post town

County/Region |

ot [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [

Country

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section G3 only
+ No Complete Section G4 only

EEA companies ®
Please give details of the register where the company file is kept {including the ~ |@EEA
relevant state) and the registration number in that register, A full list of countries of the EEA can
be found in our guidance:
Where the company/ ] www,gov.uk/companieshouse
firm is registered © ©This is the register mentioned in
r Article 3 of the First Company Law

Registration number |h|—r_|7’_[_”|_—’_|7 "—[— Directive (68/151/EEC).

G4 Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by~ {@Non-EEA . _
which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which Where you have provided details of

itis entered (including the state) and its registration number in that register. the register (including state) where
the company or firm is registered,

Legal form of the you must also provide its number in
that register
or firm

Governing law

If appticable, where
the company/firm is
registered @ |

If applicable, the m_m—m_r_!_!_ﬁ—ﬁ

registration number

l_
corporate body
I,
|
|
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Corporate director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate director. @1f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box. of your autherity is limited, please
- provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority o limited authority in the box below.
O Limited @ v
- @If you have indicated that you are
O Unlimited not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of limited the person(s) with whom you are
authority, if applicable — - authorised to act below.
v. 1T app Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.
O Alone
O Jointly ®

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with

whom you are |
acting jointly
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Permanent representative

Permanent representative’s details

Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company.
Please complete Sections J1-)4.

Full forename(s)

Surname

Permanent representative’s service address @

@ Service address
This is the address that will appear

Building name/number

Street | on the public record. This does not
have ta be your usual residential
’ address.
Post town ’ If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
County/Region | public record.
o [ [ [ [ [T
Country
E Permanent representative’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative. 8 |f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box, of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority O Limited limited authority in the box below.
.. ©[f you have indicated that you are
O Unlimited not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of limited the person(s) with whom you are
authority, if applicable - — - authorised to act below.
. 1T app Are you autharised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.
O Alone
O Jointly®

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with

whom you are |
acting jointly

10/15 Version 6.0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Person authorised

1

Details of person authorised to accept service of documents
in the UK

Please use this section to list all the persons’ authorised to accept service below.
Please complete Sections K1-K2.

Full forename(s}

Surname

Service address of person authorised to accept service @

Building name/number |

Street

Post town

County/Region

Postcode

(
HEREREES

Country

@ Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have 1o be your usual residential
address. Please note, a DX address
would not be acceptable.
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 622)

Private Company Limited by Shares

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

Maxam Tire International L.imited

PART A MANDATORY ARTICLES

Company Name
The name of the company is Maxam Tire Inlernational Limited.

Members® Liabilitics
The Liability of the members is limited.

Liabilities or Contributions of Members

Certified True C
For and on behalf o

RINZA LIMITED
/\,\/\,

v
m?“’ﬁ“”

Sttddnennsananasay

18 03

The liability ot the members is limited to any antount unpaid on the shares held by the members.

Share Capital and Initial Shareholdings (on the company’s formation)

The total number of shares that the Company proposes to issue

The lotal amount of share capital to be subscribed by the
Company’s founder member(s)

(i) The amount to be paid up or Lo be regarded as paid up

(i) The amount to remain unpaid or to be regarded as
remaining unpaid

Class of Shares

The total aumber of shares that the Company proposces o issue

The ttal amount of share capital to be subscribed by the
Company’s founder member(s)

{iY  The amount to be paid up or to be regarded as paid up

(ii}  The amount to remain unpaid or to be regarded as
remaining unpaid

One

UsSD1.00

LSb1.00

USD0.0O

Ordinary

One

UsD1.00

UsD1.00

uspo.oo




We, the undersigiied, wishi to foom a company and wish to adopt the Acticles of” Association as attached, and we
agree to subscribe lor the amount of share capital of the Company and to take the number of share(s} in the
Company scl opposite our name.

Name(s) of Number of Shares ane
Founder Member{s) Total Amount of Share Capital

For and on behalf of

Cerodd o Jarwell Bimited
BRED SHEAL S One Ordinary Shares
UsDi.00
(Sd) CHANG Lai Ying
Authorised signature(s)
Total: One Ordinary Shares

UsiI1.00




PARTB OTIER ARTICLES

Preliminary
In these Articles, unless the subject or context otherwise requires:-
"accounting reference period” means the period by reference to which the financial year is to be determined.

"agsociated company” mceans a subsidiary of the Company, a helding company of the Company, or a
subsidiary of such a holding company.

"Company” means the above-named company.

"company records" means any register, index, agreement, memotandum, minutes or other document required
by the Qrdinance to be kept by the Company, but does not include accounting records,

"dircctors" means the directors for the time being of the Company.
"month" means calendar month.

"Ordinance™ means the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) which includes any subsidiary legislation made
thereunder.

"scevetary™ means any person, firm or company appointed by the directors to perferm the dutics of the
secretary and inctudes any acting or temporary sccretary.

"these Articles” means the Articles of Association in their present form or ag altered from time to time,
Words importing the singular number only shall include the plural number and viee versa.

Words importing the mascutine gender only shall include the feminine gender.

Words importing persons shall include corporations.

Expressions referring to "writing” and "written” shall unless otherwise expressly stated, be construed as
weluding references 1o printing, lithography, photography and other modes of representing or reproducing
words in a visible form {including electronic mail and facsimile transmission).

Whercver any provision of these Articles (except a provision for the appointment of” a proxy} requires that a
communication as between the Company, its directors or members be effected in writing, the requirement may
be satistied by the communication being given in the form of an electronic record if the person to whom the
conununicalion is given consents 10 it being given to him in that form,

Wherever any provision of these Artigles requires that a meeting of the Company, its directors or members be
held, the requirement may be satisfied by the meeting being held by such lawtul electronic means and in such
manner a8 may be agreed by the Company in gencral mecting,.

Save as defined in this Article, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall bear the same meaning
as in the Ordinance or any statutory modification thereof in force at the date at which these Articles become
binding on the Company.

The regulations contained in Schedule 2 1o the Companies {Model Articles) Notice (Chapter 622H) shall not
apply 1o the Company,

The business of the Company may be commenced as soon after the incorporation of the Company as the
dircctors shall think fit and notwithstanding that only part of the shares may have been allotted.
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Private Company
The Company is a private company and accordingly the following provisions shall have eflect, namely:-

{a)  The number of members for the time heing of (he Company (exeluding persons who are employees of
the Company and persens who were mebers while being employees of the Company and who
continue lo be members after ceasing to be such employeest is not to exceed fifty, but where two or
more persons holding one or more shares in the Company jointly are to be regarded as one member.

(b} No invitation shall be made to the public to subseribe for any shares, debentures or debenture stock of
the Company.

(¢} The vight of transfer of shares ef the Company shall be restricted m the manner provided by these
Articles.

Maximum Number of Shares
There is no maximum number of shares of any class that the Company may issuc.
Shares and Variation of Rights

{a) The Company may by ordinary resolution create and issuc all or any part ol its share capital (whether
original, increased or reduced) either in Hong Kong dollars or in any other currency or partly in one
currency and partly in another.

() The Company may by ordinary resobution converl its share capital or any class of sharcs (rom onc
curreney fo another currency on more than one oceasion or at a specificd time or in specified
cireumstances.

Subjeet to the provigions of the Ordinance and save as provided by contract or these Articles to the contrary,
the directors may allot, grant rights to subscribe for, or otherwise deal with or disposc of shares to such
persons, at such Umes, for such consideration and upon such terims as they think proper,

Without prejudice 1o any special rights previously conlerred on the holders of any existing sharcs or class of
shares, any share in the Company may be issucd with or may subscquently have attached to it such preferced,
delerred, qualified or other special vights, privileges, conditions o restrictions, whether in regard 1o dividend,
voting. return of capital or otherwise as the Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution
delermine.

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company may excreise all powers of paying interest out of
capital and of paying commission and brokerage in connection with the issuc ofany shares.

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognized by the Company as holding any share upon any
trust, and the Company shall not be bound by or be compelled in any way to recognize (even when having
notice thercof) any oguitable, contingent, future or partial tnterest in any share or any interest m any
fractional part of a share or {cxcept only as by these Articles or by law otherwise provided) any other rights
in respect of any share cxcept an absolute right to the entircty thercof in the registered hoelder.

{a)  Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any share they shall be decmed (o hold the
same as joint tenants with benefit of survivorship.

(b}  On the death of any one ol such joint holders the survivor or survivors shall be the only person or
persons recognized by the Company as having any (itle to such shares, but the dircetors may require
such evidence ol death as they may deem fit,

(¢)  The joint holders of any share shall be jointly and severally Hable for afl liabilitics in respeet of such
share but any of them may give effectual receipts for any dividends. bonuses or other moneys payable
in respeet of such share.
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{d} The first-named upon the register of members shall, however, as regards voting, proxy, scrvice of
notices and delivery of certificates und dividend warrants, be deemed 10 be the sole owner of such
share.

() Anything to be agreed or specified by the joint holders [or the purposes of these Articles or the
Ordinance shall be deemed to be specilicd or agreed by all joint holders upon the agreement or
specification of the holder whose name appears first in the register of members.

(1Y Unless the joint holders agrec among themselves as to whose name will appear first in the register of
members, the Company shall be at Hberty to decide the same at its sole and absolute diseretion,

if at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class may,
whether or not the Company is being wound up, be modified, varied, abrogated or otherwise dealt with the
sanction ot a special resolution of the holders of the shares of the class.

The riglts conlerred upon the holders of the shares ol any class issued with prelerred or other rights shall not,
unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied
by the creation or issuc of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.

Share Redemptions, Share Buy-Back and Financial Assistance

Subject o the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company may issue any shares which are, or at the option of
the Company or the holder, liable to be redeemed.  The directors may deterinine the terms, conditions and
manner of redemption of the shares.

Subject 1o the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company may buy back its own shares (including any
redecmable shares).

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company may make a payment in respect of the redemption
or buy-back out of capital otherwise than out of distributable profits of the Company or the proceeds ol a
fresh issue of shares made for such purpose.

Subject 1o the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company may give financial assistance directly or indirectly
for the purpose of the acquisition by any person of shares in the Company or its holding company or for the
purpose of reducing or discharging any liability incurred (by that or any other person) for that purpose.

Lien

The Company shail have a first and paramount lien upon all the shares registered in the name of euch
member (whether sotely or jointly with others) and upon the proceeds of sale thereof for his or his estate's
debts, liabilities and engagements, solely or jointly with any other person, to or with the Company, whether
the period for the payment, fulfitlment or discharge thereof shall have actually arrived or not; and such lien
shall extend to all dividends from time to time declared in respect of such shares. The bHen conferred above
shall attach to fully paid up shares and to all shares registered in the name of any person indebted or under
ligbility to the Company, whether he shall be the sole registered holder thercol or shall be one of two or
more joint holders.

The Company may sell any shares on which the Company has a lien, but no sale shall be made unless a sum
in respect of which the lien cxists is presently payable, nor until the expiration of 14 days after a notice in
writing, stating and demanding payment of such part of the amount in respect of which the fien exists as is
presently payable, has been given to the registered holder for the time being of the share, or the person
entitled thereto by reason of his death or bankruptey.

To give effeet to any such sale the dirgctors may authorize some person to ransfer the shares sold to the
purchaser thercof. The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any such
trunsfer, and he shali not be bound to sce to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title 1 the
shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale,
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The proceeds of the salc shall be reccived by the Company and applied in payment of such part of the
amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, and the residue, if any, shall {subject 1o a
like lien for sums not presently payable as cxisted upon the shares belore the sale) be paid to the persons
cntitled to the shares at thie datc of the sale.

Calls on Shares

The dircetors may from time to time make calls upen the members in respect of any moneys unpaid on their
shares and not by the conditions of allotment thercof made payable at fixed times and cach member shall
{subject to recerving at lcast (4 days notice specifying the time or times and place of payment) pay (o the
Company at the time or times and place so specificd the amount called on his shares. The non-receipt ofa
notice of any call by, or the accidental omission to give notice of a call to, any of the members shall not
invalidale the call. A call may be revoked or postponed as the directors may determine.

A call shall be deemed 1o have been made at the time when the resolution of the dircetors authorizing the call
was passed and may be reguired to be paid by instalments.

The joint hobders of a share shall be jointly and severally ltabic to pay all calls in respeet thercof,

If & sum called in respect of a share is not paid belore or on the day appointed for payment thereofll the
1o the time of actual payment at such rate as the directors may determing, but the directors shall be at liberty
to waive payment of such interest wholly or in part.

Any sum which by the kerms of issue of a share becomes payable on aliotment or at any fixed date shall for
the purposcs of these Articles be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by the
terms of issuc the same heeomes payable. and in case of non-payment ali the relevant provisions of these
Articles as to payment of interest and cxpenses. forfeiture or otherwise shail apply as if such sum had
become payable by vittue of a call duly made and notified.

The dircciors may, on the issue of shares, differentiate between the holders as to the amount of calls to be
paid an the times of paymen,

‘The directors may. il they think hit, receive from any member willimg to advance the same, alt or any part ot
the moncys uncalled and unpaid upon any shares held by him, and upon all or any of the moneys so
advanced may (until the same would, but for such advance, become payable) pay interest at such rale as may
be agreed upon between the directors and the member paying such sum in advance.

tixcept as hercinafier provided, no person shall exercisc any tights of a member untit his name shall have
been entered in the register of members and he shall have paid all calls and other moneys for the time being
duc and payable on any share held by him.

Forfeiture of Shares

I a member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call on the day appointed tor payment thereof, the
dircctors may, at any time thercafter during such time as any part of the call or instalment remains unpaid,
serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid, together with any
mterest which may have accrued.

The notice shall name a further day (not carlict than the expiration of 14 days from the date of service of the
notice} on or belfore which the payinent required by (he notice is to be made. and shall state that in the cvent
of non-payment at or before the time appointed the shares in respect of which the call was made will be
Hable to be forteited.

Il the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid arc not complicd with, any share in respeet of which the

notice has been given may at any time thercafter, before the payment required by the notice has been made,
be forfeited by a resolution of the directors to that effect.

G
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A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner as the directors
think fit.  For the purpose ol giving effect 10 any such sale or other disposition the directors may authorize
some person to transter the shares so sold or otherwise disposed of 1o the purchaser thereol or any vther
person becoming entitled thercto, At any time belore a sale or disposition the forfeiture may be cancelled
on such terms as the directors think fit.

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited shares, but
shall, notwithstanding, remain liable to pay to the Company all moneys which, at the date of forfeiture, were
pavablie by him to the Company in respect of the shares, but his liability shall cease 1f and when the
Company shall have received payment in full of all such moneys in respect of the shares.

A statutory declaration in writing that the declarant is a director or the secretary of the Company and that a
share in the Company has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the declaration shall be conclusive evidence
of the facts therein staled as against all persons claiming o be entilled to the share. The Company may
receive the consideration, it any, given for the share on any sale or disposition thereof and may execute a
tansier of the share in favour of the person to whom the share is sold or disposed ol and he shall Lhereupon
be registered as the holder of the share and shall not be bound to sce to the application of the purchasc
money, it any, nor shall his title to the share be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proccedings in
reference to the forfeiture, sale or disposal of the sharc.

The provisions ol these Artickes as (o forfeiture shall apply in the case ol pon-payment of any sum which, by
the terms of issue of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time as il the same had been payable by virtue of a
call duty made and notified.

Transfer of Shares
The right of members to transfer their shares shall not be restricied by any rights of pre-emption,

The instrument of transter of any share shall be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and the transferee
and the tansteror shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until the name of the transferee is entered
in the register of members in respect thereof.

Subject 1o such of the restrictions of these Articles as may be applicable, any shares may be transterred by
instrunient in writing in any usual or common form or any other form which the directors may approve.

The dircctors may in their absolute discretion decline to register any transfer of any share, whether or not it
15 a fully paid share.

The directors may also decline to recognize any instrument of transfer unless:-

{a) the instrument of transfer is accompanicd by the certificate of the shares to which it relates, and such
other evidence as the directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transleror to make the
transfer; and

{b) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of share.

If the directors refuse to register a transfer they shall within 2 months afier the date on which the transter was
lodged with the Company send to the transferor and transferee notice of the refusal.  The transferor or
transferce may request a statement of the reasons for the refusal.  If such a request s made, the directors
must, within 28 days after reeeiving the request, send the transferor or transferee who made the request a
staternent of the reasons for the refusal, or register the lransler,

The register of members may be closed at such times and for such periods as the directors may from lime to
lime determing, provided always that such closure shall not be in any year for more than 30 days,

The Company shall be entitled to charge a fee as the directors may from time Lo time require or prescribe on
the registration of a transfer and of ¢very probate, letters of admintstration, certificate ot death or marriage,
power of attorney, or other instrument refating to or affecting the title to any share.
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Transmission of Shares

In case of the death of a member the survivor or survivors where the deceased was a joint holder, and the
legal personal representatives of the deceased where hie was a sole holder, shall be the only persons
recognized by the Company as having any title to his interest in the shares; but nothing herein contained
shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder from any liability in respeet of any share which had been

Jointly held by him with other persons.

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptey of a member may, upon
such cvidence being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the directors and subject as
hereinafler provided. elect either to be registered himsell” as holder of the share or to have some person
nominatcd by him registered as the transferee thereof, but the directors shall, in cither case, have the same
right lo decline or suspend registration as they would have had in the case ol a transfer of the share by that
member before his death or bankruptey, as the case may be,

I the person so becoming entitled shafl clect o be registered himselll he shall deliver or send to the
Company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so clects. If he shall elect to have another person
rogistered he shall testify his ¢lection by executing to that person a transfer of the share. All the fimitations,
restrictions and provisions of these Articles relating to the right to transfer and the registration of transfers of
sharcs shall be applicable to any such notice or transfor as aforesaid as if the death or bankruptey of the

membor had not nocurrad and the nidios oy trmeloe wora o e

A persan becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or bankrupley of the holder shall be entitled to
the same dividends to which he would be entitied if be were the registered holder of the share:

Provided always that the directors may al any time give notice requiring any sueh person 1o eleet either (o be
registered himsell or to transfer the share, and i the notice is not complicd with within 90 days the dircctors
may thereafter withhold payment ol all dividends. bonuses or other moneys payvable in respect of the share
until the requirements ol the notice have been complied with.

[f the directors refuse to register the person so becoming entitled as holder of the share or his nominee as the
transferce thereof, they shall, within 2 months afler the date on which the notice in writing was received by
the Company, send to that person notice of the refusal.  Within 28 days alter the receipt of a request for
provision ol a stalement of the reasons tor the refusal to register a transmission by the Company from the
person 80 becoming entitled, Lhe direetors shall send such statement to the person who made such request, or
register the transmission.

Share Certificates

Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of members shall be entitled without
payment to receive within 2 months after alloiment or lodgment of a duly stamped instrument ol transfer (or
within such other period as the conditions of issue shall provide) one certificate for all his shares or several
certificates cach for one or more of his shares upon payiment of $5 for every certificate after the first or such
fcss sum gs the dircetors shall from time to time determine. . Where only some of the sharcs compnised in a
share certificate are trans{erred, the old certificate shali be cuncelled and a new certificate for the balance of
such shares issued in licu without charge, subject to delivery up of the old certificate for cancellation.
Provided that in respect of a share or shares held jointty by several persons the Company shall not be bound
to issue more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of severat joint holders shall
be sufTicient delivery to all such holders.,

If the Company has adepled a common scal, every share certilicate can be cither executed with its commen
seal or without the common scal in accordance wilh these Articles as the directors may decide. I the
{'ompany does not adopt a commaon seal, cvery share certificate shall be exceuted in accordance with
Article 133, Each share certificate shall specily the number and class of shares, and. il required, the
distinctive numbers thercof comprised thercin, the amount paid up thercon and, il appropriate, whether such
shares carry no voting rights.  No certificate shall be issued in respeet of more than one class of shares.  [IF
there shall be more than onc class of sharcs then cach certificate of cvery class shall state thereon that the
share capital is divided into different classes.



52 If a sharc certificate is defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be renewed on payment of a fee of $5 or such less
sum and on such terms (it any) as to evidence and indemnity and the payment of out-af-pocket expenses of’
the Company ol investigaling evidence as the directors think fie

Alteration of Capital

53  The Company may alter its shure capital in any one or more of the following ways in accordance with the
provisions of the Ordinance:-

(a) increase its share capital by allotting and issuing new shares;

{(b) increase its share capital without atloiting and issuing new shares, if the funds or other assets for the
increase are provided by the members;

(cy capitalize its profits, with or without allotting and issuing new shares;

() allot and issuc bonus shares with or without increasing its share capital,
{c) convert all or any of its sharcs into a larger or smaller number of shares; or
(I3 cancel shares -

(i) that, at the date the resolution for cancellation is passed, have not been tuken or agreed to be
taken by any person; or

(i) that have been forfeited,
Reduction of Share Capital

54  The Company may reduce its share capital in the following ways in accordance with the provisions of the
Ordinance:-

{2} by special resolution supported by a solvency statement of directors; or
(b} by special reselution confirmed by the court.

55 A reserve arising from the reduction of share capital under the last preceding Article is to be regarded as
realized profit, which is subject to anything to the contrary in —

{a) anorder of, or undertaking given to, the court;
(b)y the resolution for, or any other resolution refevant Lo, the reduction of share capital; or
(€) these Articles.
General Mectings
56 (a)  Save where the Company is a subsidiary of a public company at any time during the financial year, the
Company must subject to the provision of this Article, in respeet of each financial year, hold a gencral
meeling as its annual general mecting within 9 months after the end of its accounting reference period
{in addition 10 any other meetings held during the period), except where:
() everything that is reguired to be done at the meeting is done by a written resolution and copies of
the financial statements, directors” report and suditors’ report that are required (o be laid or
produced at the meeting arc provided to cach member on or before the date when the directors

send the written resotution to members For signatures;

(i) the Company has only one member;



(1) the Company has dispensed with the holding of annual general meetings by a written resolution or
a resalution at a general meeting passed hy all members: or

(iv)  the Company is a dormant company under the Ordinance.

(b) 1 the Company is a subsidiary of a public company at any time during the fnancial year, the Company
muist, in respect of cach financial year, hold an annuat general meeting within 6 months after the end of
its accounting reference period (in addition W any other meetings held during the period), except where
any of the exeeptions mentioned in the last preceding paragraph applies.

{t)  Subject to this Article, the annual general mecting shatl be held at such time and place as the directors
shall appoint. Al other general meetings shall be called extraordinary general meetings.

{(d)y [In respect of the first accounting reference period of the Company which is fonger than 12 months. the
Company must hold its annual general mecting within the following period:-

(i) in the casc of the Company not being a subsidiary of a public company at any time during the
financial year, within 9 months after the anniversary of the Company's incotporation or 3 months
after the end of that accounting reference period, whichever is the later; or

(18 in the case of the Compeny being a subsidiary ol a pabbic company sl any time during the
financial year, within 6 months after the anniversary of the Company’s incarporation or 3 months
afler the end of that accounting reference period. whichever is the later,

{c) If the Company has by a directors’ resolution shortened its accounting referenee period. the Company
miust hold its annual general mecting within the following period: -

" in the case of the Company not being a subsidiary of a public company at any time during the
financial year, within 9 months after the end of the shortened accounting reference period or 3
months after the date of the divectors” resolution, whichever is the later: or

{ii)  inthe case of the Company being subsidiary of a public company at any {ime during the financial
year, within 6 months afier the end of the shortened accounting reference period or 3 months after
the date of the dircctors” resolution, whichever is the later.

The dircctors may, whenever they think fit, and shall, on requisition by members in accordance with the
Ordinance, proceed to convene an extraordinary general mecting,  The provisions of the Ordinance shall
apply to any requisition and to any failure by the directors to convene an extraordinary gencral meeting
when so requisitioned.

Notice of General Mceetings

An annual general mecting shall be calied by 21 days' notice in writing at the Jeast, and a mecting of the
Company other than an annual general meeting shatl be called by 14 days' notice in writing at the least. The
period of notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the day for
which it is given. The notice shall be given, in the manner hercinafter mentioned or in such other manner, 1if
any, as may be prescribed by the Company in general mecting, to such persons as are, under these Articles or
the Ordinance, entitied w receive such notices from the Company:

Provided that a meeting of the Company shall, notwithstanding that it is called by shorter notice than that
specified in this Atticle, be deemed Lo have been duly called if' it is so agreed:-

(a) in the case of a meeting called as the annual general meeting, by all the members entitled (o attend and
vole thereat; and

(by in the case of any other meeting, by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and
vole at the meeting, heing a majority together holding not less than 95% of the total voting vights at the
meeting of alt the members.
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Every notice calling a general mecting shall:-
{a) specily the date and tine of the nmeeting;

(b) specifythe piace ofthe meeting (and if the meeting is to be held in 2 or more places, the principal place
ol the meeting and the other place or places of the meeting):

(¢} state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the mecting;
(d) for anotice calling an annual general mecting, state that the meeting ts an annual general meeting;

(e) if a resolution {whether or not a special resolution} is intended to be moved at the meeting, include
notice of the resolution, and include or be accompanied by a stalement containing any information or
explanation that is reasonably necessary o indicate the purpose of the resolution, unless otherwisce
exempted pursuant to or under the Ordinance;

() if a special resolution is intended to be moved at the mecting, specitfy the intention and include the text
of the special resolution; and

{g) contain g statcment specifying a member’s right to appoint a proxy or scparale proxies in accordance
with the Ordinance.

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting lo, or the non-receipt of notice of a meeting by, any
person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate the procecdings at that meeting.

Proceedings at General Meetings

All business shall be deemed special that is transacted at an extraordinary general meeting, and also all that
is transacted at an annual general mecting, with the exception of the declaration and sanction of dividends,
the consideration of the financial statements and the reports of the dircctors and auditors, the clection of
divectors in the place of those retiring and the appointment of, and the fixing of the remuneration of, the
auditors.

No business shall be transacted al any general meeting unless a quorum of members is present at the time
when the meeting proceeds to business and continues (o be present until the conclusion of the meeting; save
as herein otherwise provided, 2 inembers present in person or by proxy shall be a quorum or if the Company
has only one member, onc member present in person or by proxy shall be a quorum.

Meetings may be held in Hong Kong or at such other place or places in the world as the directors may
determing. A general meeling may be held at 2 or more places using any technology that enables the
members who are not together at the same place to listen, speak and vote at the meeting.

If within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting, if’
convened upon the requisition of members, shall be disselved; in any other case it shall stand adjourned 10
the same day in the next week, at the same time and place or to such other day and at such other time and
place ag the directors may determine, and if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within haif an
hour from the time appointed for the mecting, the members present shall be a quorum.

The chairman, if any, of the board of directors shall preside as chairman at every general meeting ot the
Company, or if there is no such chairman, or if he shall not be present within 15 minutes after the time
appointed for the holding of the mecting or is unwilling to act or is absenl from Hong Kong or such other
place in which the meeting is to be held or has given notice to the Company of his infeniion not to attend the
meeting, the directors present shall elect one of their number to be chaivman of the meeting,.

I at any meeting no director is willing to act as chairman or tf no dircctor is present within 15 minutes after
the time appointed for holding the mecting, the members present shall choose one of their number o be
chairman of the meeting, A proxy may be clected to be the chairtian of the mecting by a resolution of the
Company passed at the meeting,
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The chairman may, with the consent of any mceeting at which a quorum is present (and shall if so directed by
the meeting). adjourn the mecting from time 1o time and from place to place, but no business shall he
ransacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting [rom whichk the
adjournment took place. When a meeting is adjourncd for 30 days ot more, notice of the adjourned mecting
shall be given as in the case of an original meeting.  Save as aforesaid it shall not be necessary to give any
aotice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

Votes of Members

At any general mecting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be deaided on a show of hands
uniess a poil is (before or on the declaration of the resuit of the show of hands) demanded by, -

(a) the chairman of the mecting;
(b atleast 2 members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote; or

{c) any member or members prescnt in person or by proxy and representing at least 5% of the fotal voting
rights of all members having the right to attend and vote at the meeting,

Subjecet to any rights or restrictions Tor the time being attached to any class or classes of sharcs, on a show of
hands everv member present in person or by proxv shall have 1 vote. and on a noll everv member shall have
1 vote for cach share of which he is the holder. I a member appoints more than one proxy, the proxies so
appoinied shall not be entitled to vote on the resolution on a show of hands,

if, before or on the declaration of the result on a show of hands at the mecting, the chairman of the mecting
knows from the proxies received by the Company that the result on a show of hands wilt be different [rom
(hat on a poll, the chairman must demand a poll,

Unless a pell 1s so demanded and the demand is not withdrawn, a declaration by the chairman that a
resolution has on a show of hands been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular majotity, or lost
and an cntry to that effect in the book containing the minutes of the proceedings of the Company shatl be
conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of
ot against such resolution.

The demand for a poll may be withdrawn only with the approval of the mecting.
A poll on any business may be demanded other than:-

(@) the clection of a chaitman of the mecting; or

() the adjournment of the mecting,

Lixcept as provided in the last preceding Article. i a poll is duly demanded it shall be taken in such time
(being not later than 7 days after the date of the demand) and in such manner as the chairman directs. No
notice needs 10 be given ol a poll not taken imimediately.  The results ol the poll shall be deemed to be the
resolution of the meeting at which the polt was demanded.

In the case of an cquality of votes whether on 4 show of hands or on a poll the chairman of the meeting at
which the show of hands takes place or al which the poll is demanded shall be entitled 1o a second or casting
vole.

No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voler or validity of any vole except at the miccting or
adjourned meeting or poit at which the vote objeeted to is given or lendered, and cvery vote not disaliowed
at such mecting or poll shatl be deemed valid for all purposes.  Any such objection made in due time shal|
be referred to the chairman of the meeting or poll whose decision shall be final and conclusive,

On a poll votes may be given cither personally or by proxy. A member entitled to more than one vote need
not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.
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I the case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be
accepted 1o the exclusion of the voles of the other joint holders; and for this purpose seniority shall be
determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of members.

A member ol unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having jurisdiction
in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his commitiee, receiver, curator bonis, or
other person in the naturc of a committee, receiver or curator bonis uppointed by that court, and any such
committee, receiver, curator bonis or other person may, on a poll, vote by proxy.  If any member is a minor,
he may vote on a show of hands or a poll by his guardian or one of his guardians who may give their votes
personally or by proxy.

No person other than a member duly registered and who has paid everything for the time being due from him
and payable to the Company in respect of his shares shalt be entitled 10 be present or to vote on any question
either personally or by proxy at any general meeting or upon a poll or be reckoned in a quorum at any
general meeting und no member shall be entitled to be present or to vote al any general meeting in respect of
any share that he has acquired by transler unless a transter of the share in respect of which he claims has
been registered by the Company.

Proxies

A proxy need nol be & member ol the Company. A member may appoint separale proxies o represent
respectively the number of the shares hefd by the member that is specified in their instruments of
appointment.

The instrument appainting a proxy shall be signed by the appointor or his attorney duly authorized in writing,
or il the appointor is # corporation, either under scal or signed by an olTicer or attorney duly authorized.

The instrument appointing a proxy may be in hard copy form or in electronic form it the Company so agrees.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attomcey or other authority, it any, under which it is
signed or an office copy or a notarially cervified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the
registered office of the Company or be sent by electronic means to the electronic address specifted by the
Company in:

(i) the notice convening the meeting; or

(if} any instrument appeinting a proxy issued by the Company in relation to the mecting; or

(iii) any invitation to appoint a proxy issued by the Company in relation to the meeting,

at lcast 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting at which the person named in such instrument
proposes to attend and vote or, in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it is demanded, at least 24
hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll; otherwise the person so named shall not be entitled
to vote af that meeling (or as the case may be) except with the approval of the chairman of the mecting,  In

caleulating the aforesaid periods, no account shall be laken of any part ol a day that is a public holiday.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the following form or a form as near thereto as circumstances
adnuit;-

" Limited
V'we yof , being 4 member/members ol the
above-named company, hereby appoint of . or failing him,
of ., as myfour proxy to vote for me/us on myfour
behali at the Jannual or extraordinary, as the case may be| general meeling of the company 1o be held on the
day of 20 . 2nd at any adjournment thercof.

Signed this dayof 20
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Where it 1s desired o afford members an opportunity of voting for or against a resolution the instriment
appointing a proxy shall be in the following form ar a form as near thereto as circimslances adimit:-

! Limited
VWe .of . being a  member/members  of  the
above-named company | hereby appoint of , or faling him,
of . as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our
hehalf at the fannual or extraordinary., as the case may be] gencral mecting of the company to be held on the
day of 20 . amdi at any adjournment thereof.
Signed thas day of 20

This form is to be use *in favour offagainst the resolution.
Unless olherwise instructed, the proxy will vole as he thinks fit.
*Strike put whichever is not desired.”

The instrument appointing a proxy shatl be deemed to confer authority o demand or join in demanding a
pall or to consent to the holding of & mecting at shovt notice, and to include power to act generally at the
mecting for the porson giving the traxy and any adiourament therenl” No vsteiment apnomding a proxy

shall be valid except for the mecting mentioned therein and any adjournment thereof.

The attorney of any member duly authorized generally or specially by power of attorney shall be entitled lo
vote on a show of hands or on a poll on behalf of such member provided that the power of attorney
appointing him or an office copy or a notartally certified copy of that power of allorney shall have been
deposited in the same manner and subject to the same time limits as provided for proxies mentioned above.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the
previous death or insanity of the principal or revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the
proxy was cxecuted, or the transfer of the share in respect of which the proxy is given. provided that no
itimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer as aforesaid shall have been received by
the Coempany at its registered office or at its electronic address specificd above, before the commencement of
the meeting or adjourned meceling at which the proxy is used, or in the case of a poll taken more than 48
hours after it is demanded. before the time appointed for the taking of the poll.

Corporations acting by Representatives at Mectings

Any corporation which is a meniber of the Company may by reselution of its direclors or other governing
body authorize such person as it thinks il to act as its representative at any meeting ol the Company or of
any class of members of the Company, and the person so authorized shall be entitled to exercisc the same
powers on behall of the corporation which he represents as that corperation could exercise if it were an
individual member of the Company.,

Written Resolutions of Members

Notwithstanding any pravisions of the Ordinance, a resolution in writing signed by or on behall of all the
members of the Company ot of any class thereof (as the casc may be) shall be as valid and effective asif
had been passed as an ordinary or special resolution (as the case mway be) at a general meeting of the
Company or of the rclevant class of members (as the case may be) duly called and constituted.  Such a
resolution may consist of one ot more documents in tike form signed by one or more members and shall not
be invalidated by failurc of the secretary to certify the wording of the same prior to signaturc. A message
sent by a member by facsimile or other remote electronic information delivery system shall be deemed 1o be
a document signed by him for the purposes ol this Article.



92

93

94

95

96

97

¥

99

100

Where the Company has only onc member and that member takes any decision that may be taken by the
Company in general meeting and that has effect as if agreed by the Company in general meeting, the
member shall (unless that decision is taken by way ol a wrilten resoluiion) provide the Company with a
writlen record of that decision within 7 days after the decision is made.

Directors

The first director(s) shall be the person(s) numed as the director(s) in the incorporation form signed by the
tounder member or founder members submitted in respect of the incorperation of the Company.

Unless and until otherwise determined by an ordinary resolution of the Company, the directors shall not be
less than one in number, and there shall be no maximum number of directors.  Save where the Company is
a member of a group of companies of which a listed company is a member, al least one of the directors must
be a natural person,  If the Company is a member of a group of companies of which a listed company is a
member, all the directors must be natural persons.

A dircctor need not hold any shares in the Company. A director who is not a member of the Company shall
nevertheless be entitled to attend and speak at general meetings.

A dircctor may resign from his office at any time by giving written notice to the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Ordinance.

(a) The dircctors shall be puid out of the funds of the Company remuneration for their services at such rate
as shall frony time (o time be decided by the Company in general meeting.

(b)  All sums paid to the dircctors by way ol remuneration shall be divided amongst the directors as they
shall mutually agree or in defautt of such agreement equally between them.

{¢) The directors shall also be entitled to be paid their reasonable travelling and hotel and other expenses
incurred in attending and returning trom meetings of the directors or any commitiee of the directors or
general meetings of the Company or in connexion with the business of the Company,

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, these Articles and to any directions given by special resolution,
the business and atfairs of the Company shall be managed by the directors, who may exercise all the powers
of the Company. No alteration of these Articles and no such direction shall invalidate any prior act of the
directors which would have been valid if that alteration had not been made or that direction had not been
given. The powers given by this Article shall not be limited by any special power given to the directors by
these Articles, and a mecting of the directors at which a quorum is present may cxercise all powoers
exereisable by the directors.

(a) The dircctors may from time to time and at any time by power of attorncy appoiot any company, firm
or person or body of persons, whether nominated directly or indirectly by the directors, 1o be the
attorncy of attorneys of the Company for such purposes and with such powers, authoritics and
diserctions (not exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the directors under these Articles) and for
such period and subject to such conditions as they may think fit.

(b)  Any such appointment niay (if the dircctors think fit) be made in favour of any company or of the
members, directors, nominges or managers of any company or firm, or in favour of any fluctuating body
of persons whether nominated directly or indirectly by the directors,

(€Y Any such powers of allorney may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons
dealing with any such attorney as the directors may think fit and may also aunhorize any such atiorney
10 delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions vested in him.

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company or the directors of the Company may cause to be
kept in any territory a branch register of members resident in such territory, and the directors may make and
vary such regulations as they may think fit respecting the keeping of any such register.
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All cheques, promissory notes, drafls, bitls of exchange and other negotiable instriments, and all receipts tor
maoneys paid to the Campany, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed. or atherwise executed, as the case
may be, in such manner as the directors shall from time 1o time by resolution determine.

The directors on behall of the Company may pay a gratuity or pension or allowance on retirement (o any
dicector who bas held any other salaried office or place of profit with the Company or (o lus widow or
dependants and may make contributions to any fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any
such gratuity, pension or allowance,

Powers, Dutics and Interests of Directors

The directors may excrcise all the powers of the Company to borcow money for the purposes of the
Company, without limit and upon such terms as they may think fit, and 1o morlgage or charge its under-
taking. properly (both present and future) and uncalled capital. or any part thercol, and 1o issue bonds.
debentures, debenture stock, and, subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, convertible debentures and
converlible debenture stock and other sccurities whether outright or as security for any debt, Tiability or
obligation of the Company or of any third party.

Dcbentures, debenture stock, bonds or other sceuritics may be made assignable frec from any equitics
herween the Company and the person to whom the same may be issued.  Any debentures, debenture stock,
honds ar nther ceenrities may he iveued with Any c!w(tinl nrivileges as In redderlion currender, derwings
allotment of shares. attending and voling at gencral meetings of the Company. appointment of directors and
otherwisc,

If any uncalled capital of the Company is included in or charged by any mortgage or other security, the
dircctors may, by instrument under the common seal, authorize the person in whose favour such morigage or
security is executed, or any other person in trust for him, to make calls on the mambers in respect of such
uncalicd capital, and the provisions hereinbefore contained in regard to cabls shall, mutatis mutandis apply to
calls made under such authority, and such authority may be made cxercisable either conditionally or
uncenditionally, and cither presently or contingently, and cither to (he exclusion of the dircctors’ powers ov
otherwise, and shali be assignable if expressed so to be.

Where any uncalled capital of the Company is charged, all persons taking any subscequent charge thereon
shall take the same subject to such prior charge and shall nol be entitled, by notice 1o the sharcholders or
otherwisc. to oblain priority over such prior charge.

if the dircctors or any of them, or any other persons, shall becoime personally liable for the payment of any
sum primarily duc from the Company, the directors may cxccufc or cause to be executed any mottgage,
charge or security over or affecting the whole or any part of the assets of the Company by way of indemnity
to secure the direclors or persons so becoming liable as aforesaid from any loss in respect of such liability.

(0) (1) A dircctor who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly. interested in a conlract or proposed
contract (being a contract of significance in relation to the Company's busincss) with the Company
shall, if his interest in the contract or proposcd contract is material, declare the nature of his interest
in aceordance with the provisions of the Ordinance. A general notice given to the dircctors by a
dircctor to the effeet that he has an interest (as member, officer. employce or otherwise) in a body
corporate or firm specified in the notice, or that he is conneeted with a person specified in the notice
(other than a body corporatc or firm), and is to be regarded as interested in any transaclion,
arrangement ot contract that may, after the effective date of the notice, be entercd into or made with
that specified hody corporate or firm or person, shall, for the purposes of this Article, be deemed to
be a suflicient disclosure ol interest in relation to any transaclion, arrangement or contraclt.  Within
15 days afier the day on which the Company receives a general notice, the Company must send a
copy of such notice to the other directors of the Company.

(iiyWhere the Company has only onc member and cnters into a contract (other than contract entered
into in the ordinary course of business of the Company) with that member and that member is also a
dircetor of the Company, the Company shall, unless the contract is in writing, sct out the terms of
the contract in a memorandum within 15 days from the entering into of the contract and the
memoranduin shall be kept at the same place where the books containing the mimedes ol the
directors arc kept.
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(b} A director may vole in respect of any contract or arrangement in which he is interested or upon any
matter arising thereout and if he shall do so his vote shall be counted and he shall be reckoned in
estimating a quorun: when any such contract or arrangement is under consideration, provided that he
has disclosed his interest in accordance with the last preceding Article.

(¢} A direcior may hold any other oftice or place of profit under the Company {other than the office of
auditors) in conjunction with his office of director for such period and on such terms (as tw
remuncration and otherwise) as the divectors may determine and no director or intending director shall
be disquatified by his office from contracting with the Company cither with regard to his tenure of any
stich other office or place of profit or as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contract, or
any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behall of the Compuny in which any director is in
any way interested, be lable to be avoided, nor shall any director so contracting or being so interested
be liable to account to the Company for any profit realized by any such contract or arrangement by
reason ot such divector holding that office or of the fiduciary relation thereby established.

{d) A director, notwithstanding his interest, may be counted in the quorum present at any meeting al which
he or any other director is appointed to hold any such office or place of profit under the Company or at
which the terms of any such appointment are arranged, and he may vote on any such appointment or
arrangement other than his own appointment or the arrangement of the terims thereof,

(¢) Any director may act by himsell or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company, and he or his
firm shall be entitled 10 remuneration for professional services as if he were not a director; provided
that nothing herein contained shall authorize a director or his firm to act as auditors to the Company,

() A director of the Company may be or become a director or other officer of, or otherwise interested in,
any Company promoted by the Company or in which the Company may be interested as sharcholder or
otherwise, and, subject to the Ordinance, no such director shall be accountable to the Company for any
remuneration or other benefits received by him as a director or officer of, or from his interest tn, such
other company uniess the Company otherwise direct.

(g} The Company may by ordinary resolution ratify any transaction or act of a director not duly authorized
by reason of a contravention of this Article, provided that such ordinary resolution is passed with the
voles of interested members (being the director, any entity connected with the director and a trusiee
holding shares of the Company in trust for the director or for the connected entity) disregarded.

109 The directors shall ensure that the Company adequately records for future reference the information required
to be contained in any company records and keeps the following records for at least 10 years from the date of
the resofution, mecting or decisions, as the case may be:

(a) minutes ol all proceedings of general meetings and meetings of the directors and committees;
(b} copics ol all resolutions of members passed otherwise than at general meetings;
{¢) copics of all resobutions of directors passed otherwise than at meetings of directors;
{d} copics of all resolutions of committees passed otherwisc than at meetings of committees; and
(¢)  all wrilten records provided to the Company by a sole member and a sole director.
Any such minutes of any general meeting or any meeting of the directors, or any commitice, or of the
Company, il purporting to be signed by the chairman of such meeting, or by the chairman of the next mecting,
are evidence of the proceedings at the meeting.
Disqualification of directors

110 The office of a director shall be vacated if:

{a) hc becomes prohibited by law or court order from being a director or is convicted of a criminal offence;



{b) arcceiving order or. in the case of a company, a winding up order is made against him or he makes any
arrangement or composition with his creditors;

(¢}  he becomes mentally disorder or all the other directors shall unanimously resolve that he is physically
or mentally incapable of performing the functions of director:

{d) without leave, he is absent from the mectings of the dircctors for 6 consccutive months and the dircctors
shall have resolved that his office shall be vacated;

{e) heisremoved by an ordinary resolution of the Company; or

{f)  he resigns his offtce by notice in writing to the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Ordinance.

Appointment and Removal of Directors
111 The Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution increase or reduce the number of directors,

142 The dircctors shall have power at any time, and from time te time, Lo appoint any person to be a dircctor,
cither to fill a easual vacancy or as an addition to the existing divectors, but so that the total number of
directors shall nal at any lime exceed the number ixed in accordance with these Articles,

P13 Without prejudice to the powers of the directors under these Articles, the Company in general meeting may
appoint any person to be a dircctor cither to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional dircctor.

114 The Company may by ordinary resolution remove any dircetor before the expiration ol his period ol olfice
notwithstanding anything in these Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such dircetor.
Such removal shail be without prejudice to any claim such director may have for damages for breach of any
contract of service between him and the Company.  The Company may by ordinary resolution appoint
another person in place of a dircctor removed from office,

115 The continuing direclors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body. but, if and so Jong as their
number is reduced below the number fixed by or pursuant to these Articles of the Company as the necessary
quorum of directors, the continuing directors or director may act for the purpose of increasing the nunber off
direclors to that number or of summoning a general mecting of the Company, bat for no other purpose.  If
there shall be no directors able or willing to act, then any member may summon a general meeting or arrange
for a written resalution to be signed by all the members for the purpose of appointing directors,

{16 Subjcct to the provisions of the Ordinance, where the Company has onty onec member and that member is the
sole director of the Company, the Company may in general meeling nominate a person as a reserve director
of the Company to act in the place of sole dircctor in the cvent of his death,

117 Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company must not agree to grant a divector a service contract
under which the director undertakes personaily to perform services, as director or otherwise, for the Company
ot for g subsidiary of the Company or service that the director underfakes personally to perform, as director or
otherwisc, are 1o be made available by a third party to the Company or to a subsidiary of the Company and
which includes the terms of a person’s appointment as director with the guaranteed term of employment of
the director with the Company cxceeds or may exceed 3 years, except with the prescribed approval of the
members in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance.  This Article applies to contract with a dirvector
to act as managing dircctor pursuant to these Articles,

In contravention of the above, such provision in the service contract shall be void to the extent of the
comreavenlion and the Company is entitled to terminale the service confract al any time by giving reasonable
notice of the director.

Alternate Dircctors
[IR (2) A divector may with the approval of the dircetors at any time appoint any other person (whether a
director or member ol the Company or nol} to act as alternate director al any meeting of the dircetors at
which the director is not present, and may at any time revoke any such appointment.  Tvery
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appointment and revocation of appointment of an alternate director shall be made by instrument in
writing under the hand ol the director making or revaking such appointment and such instrument shatl
only take effect on the service thereof at the registered olfice ol the Company or upon the secretary,

(b) An alternate director so appointed shall not be entitled as such to receive any remuneration from the
Company, but shall otherwise be subject to the provisions hercol with regard o directors.

(¢) An alternate dircctor shall be entitled to receive notices of all mectings of the directors and to attend
and vote as a director at any such meeting at which the director appointing him is not personally
present, and generally to perform all the functions, rights, powers and duties of the director by whom
he was appointed in his capacily as a director but not ia his capacity as a manager or working director.

(d)  An alternate director shall ipso facto cease 10 be an alternate divector it his appointor ceases for any
reason to be a director.

(¢) Where a director who has been appointed 1o be an alternate director is present at a meeting ol the
directors in the absence of his appointor such altemate director shall have one vote in addition to his
vole as director.

( The remuncration of any such alternate director shall be payable out of the remuncration payabic to the
director appotnting him and shall consist ol such portion of the last-mentioned remuneration as shall be
agreed between the altermnate director and the director appointing him.

(g) An alternate director shall not be an agent of the director who appoints him and the director who
appoints an allernate divector shall not be vicariously liable for any tort commmitted by the alternate
dircetor appointed by lum while acting in the capacity o[ alternate director.

Managing Director

The directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their body to the oftice of inanaging director for
such period and on such terms as they think fit and, subject to the terms of any arrangement entered into in
any particular case, may revoke such appointment. Such appointment shall be automatically determined if
the person appointed ceases from any cause o be a director, A managing direcier shall be subject to the
same provisions as (o fesignation and removal as the other directors of the Company,

A managing director shall receive such remuneration (whether by way of salary, commission o participation
in profits, or partly in one way and partly in another) as the dircctors may determine.

The directors may entrust 1o and confer upon a managing director any of the powers exercisable by them
upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they may think [it and either cotlaterally with or
1o the exclusion of their own powers and may from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of
such powers.

Proceedings of Directors

(1) The directors may meet together for the despateh of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their
meetings, as they think fit. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes and
in ¢case of an equality of votes the chairman shatl have a second or casting vote. A director may (and the
secretary on the requisition of a director shall) at any time summon a meeting of the directors.

(b} Meetings of the directors may be held in Hong Kong or in any other part of the world as may be
convenient for the majority.  Notice of a meeting of director shall be deemed to be duly given o a
director if it is given o him personally in writing or by word of mouth or sent to him at his last known
address or any other address given by him to the Company for this purpose. A direclor may consent
to short notice of and may waive notice of any meeting and any such waiver may be retrospective.

() Any dircctor or member of a committee of dircctors may participate in a meeting of the directors or

such committee by means of a telephone or other audio communications equipment whereby all
persons  attending or participating the meeting can hear cach other.  The person or persons
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participating the meeting in the aforesaid manner shall be deemied for all purposcs to be present in
person at such meeting.

The quorwm neeessary for the transaction of the business of the directors may be fixed by the dircctors and
uniess so {ixed shall be two; il the Company has only one director, one director shall be a quorum,

A mgeting of the directors at which a quorum is present shatl be competent to exercise all the powers,
authoritics and discretions for the time being vested in or exercisable by the directors gencerally.

The dircctors may elect a chairman of their meetings and determine the period for which he is to hold office:
but i no such chairman is elected, or if at any meeting the chairman is notl present within 15 minutes after
the time appointed for holding the same, the divectors present may choose ong of their number to be
chairman of the meeting,

(a) The dircctors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such member or members
of their body as they think 13t any commillee so formed shall in the exereige of the powers so delegated
conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it by the directors.

(b) A committee may clect a chairman of its mectings; if no such chairman is clected, oraf at any mecting
the chairman is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding the same. the

(€} A commitlec may meet and adjourn its meeting as it thinks proper.  Questions arising at any mecting
shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members present, and in the case of an equality of
votes the chairman shall have a sccond or casting vote.

All acts done by any mecting of the dircctors or of a committee of divectors or by any person acting as a
dircctor shall, notwithstanding that it be atterwards discovered that there was some defect 1n the appointment
ot any such dircctor or person acting as aforcsaid. or that they or any of them were disqualified. be as valid
as 1F every such person had been duly appointed and was qualitied 1o be a dircetor.

(a} A cesolution in wriling, sighed by o majorily of the dircclors and consisting of one document or
scparate copies prepared and/or circulated for the purpose shall be as valid and cffective as if’ it had
heen passed atl & meeting ol the directors duly convened and held. provided that this Article shall not
apply in relation to any coniract or arrangement in which a dircctor or directors are inlerested, unless
the director or directors who are so interested have previously declared their intercst to the others or the
number of dircctors signing the resolution who are not interested in the contract or arrangement wouldd
have constituted a quorum of directors if a meeting had been held for the purpose of considering the
contracl or arrangement.

A written notification of confirmation of such resolution in writing scnl by a dircctor shall be deemed
to be his signature 1o such resolution in writing for the purposes of this Article.  The signature of a
director may be given by his alternate.

(b) H the Contpany has only one director and that director takes any decision that may be taken in a
meeting of the directors and that has offeet as if agreed in a meeting of the dircctors, the sole director
shall (unless that decision is taken by way of a resolution in writing) provide the Company with a
wrilten record of that decision within 7 days afler the decision is made.

Scerctary

The Company shall have a sccretary.  The first secretary shall be the person(s) named as the sceretary({ies)
in the incorporation form signed by the founder member or founder members submitted in respect of the
incorporation of the Company.  The seeretary and any joint scerctarics may be appointed by the directors
for such term, at such remuncration and upon such conditions as the dircctors may think fit and the scerctary
and any joint scoretarics so appointed may at any time be removed from office by the directors. A dircctor
may be the seerctary except where the Company has only one director:

{a) that sole director cannol also be the secretary of the Company: and
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(b} the Company cannot have as ils secretary a body corporate the sole divector of which is the sole
director of the Company.

Any provision of the Ordinance or these Articles requiring or authorizing a thing to be done by or to a

director and the secretary shall not be satisfied by its being done by or to the same person acting both as

director and as, or in the place of, the secrelary.

Common Seal

The Company may have a common seal which nust be a metallic seal and the directors shall provide for the
safe custody thereof.  The common seal shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of the
directors or of a committee of the direclors authorized by the directors in that bebalf and in the presence of
one director or of the secretary or such other person or persons as the directors or the committee of directors
may appoint for that purpose; and such director, the secretary or other person or persons shall sign every
instrument to which the common seal is so affixed in his or their presence.

IF the Company has a common seal, it may exercise the powers conferred by the Ordinance with regard to
having an official scal for usc abroad, and such powers shall be vested in the directors who may imposc such
restrictions on the use thercof as they think fit. Wherever in these Articles reference is made to the common
seal, the reference shall, when and so far as may be applicable, be deemed to include any such official scal as
aforesaid,

Whether or not the Company has comumon seal, in the event that a document is executed in the following
mapner and expressed (in whatever words) to be executed by the Company, the document shall have effect
as i1t has been cxecuted by the Company under its copumon seal:
(a) 1l the Companry has onty one director, by that sole director; or
(b} if the Company has two ot more directors,

(1) bythe two dircetors or any two of the dircectors; or

(i) any of the directors and the secretary of the Company.
The Company may execute & document as a deed by:
()  exceuting it in accordance with Articles 131 or 133;
(b} having it expressed (in whatcver words) to be exceuted by the Company as a deed; and
(¢} delivering il as a deed.

Dividends and Reserves

The Company in general mecling may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount
recommended by the dircctors. No distribution (as defined in the Ordinance) shall be made save in
accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance.

The directors may trom tme Lo time pay to the members such interam dividends us appeared 10 the directors
to be justified by the profits of the Company.

No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of protits.  The directors may, before recommending any
dividend, set aside out of the profits of the Company such sums as they think proper as a reserve or reserves
which shall, at the diseretion of the directors, be applicable for any purpose to which the profits of (he
Company may be properly applied and pending such application may, at the like discretion, cither be
emiployed in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments (other than shares of the
Company) us the directors may [rom time to time think fit. The dircctors may also, without placing the same
1o reserve, carry forward any profits which they may think prudent not to divide.

Subject Lo the rights of persons, il any, entitled to shares with special rights as 1o dividend, all dividends shall
be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereof the
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dividend is paid. bui no amount paid or eredited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the
prrposes of this Article as paid on the share. All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to
the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares during any portion or portiong of the period in respeet of
which the dividend is paid: bt il any sharc is issued on terms providing that it shall tank for dividend as
from a particular dale such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

The directors may deduct from any dividend payable to any momber all sums of money (if any) presently
payable by him to the Company on account of calls or olherwise in refation to the shares of the Company.

Any dividend, bonus, interest or other moneys payable in cash in respect of shares may be paud by cheque or
warrant sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of juint hoiders,
to the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first named on the register of members or to
such person and to such address as the holder or joint holders may in writing direct. Every such cheque or
warrani shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent. Any one of 2 or more joint
holders may give effectual receipts for any dividends, bonuses, interest or other moneys payable in respect of
the shares held by them as joint holders.  The Company shall net be linble or responsible [or any cheque or
wartant lost in transmission nor for any dividend or other monics lost to the member or person entitled
thereto by the forged endorsement of any cheque or warrant.  Payment of the cheque or warrant by the
banker on whom it is drawn shall be a good discharge to the Company.

Any recalution declaring g dividend on shares of any elase, whether s resalution of the Company in general
meeting or a resolution of the directors, may specify that the same shall be payable to the persons registered
as the holders of such shares at the close of business on a particular date, notwithstanding that it may be a
date prior to that on which the resolution 1s passed, and thercupon the dividend shall be payable to them in
accordance with their respective holdings so registered, but without pwejudice to the rights inter sc in respect
of such dividend of transferors and transferces of any such shares,  The provisions of this Article shall
miutaus mutandis apply to capitalizations to be effected in pursuance of these Articles,

Any general mecting declaring a dividend or bonus may direct payment of such dividend or bonus wholly or
partly by the distribution of specific asscts and in pacticular of paid-up sharcs, debentures or debenture stock
of any other company or in any one or more of such ways, and the directors shall give effect to such
resolution; and where any difficulty arises o regard to such distribution, the directors may scitle the same as
they think expedicnt, and in particular may issuc fractional certificates and fix the value for distribution of
such specific assets or any part thereof and may determine that cash payments shall be made o any memboers
upon the footing of the value so fixed or that ractions of less than one dollar may be disregarded in order to
adjust the rights of all partics. and may vest any such cash or specific assets in trustees as may seem
expedient 10 the directors. Where requisite, a proper contract or written particulars thercof shall be filed in
accordance with of the Ordinance; and in the casc of a writien contract the dircetors may appoint any person
to sign such contracl on behall’ of the persons entitled to the dividend or capitalized fund, and such
appointment shall be effective.

No dividend shall bear interest against the Compamy. Al dividends unclaimed for 12 years afler having
been declared may be forfeited by the dircctors and shall revert to the Company.  The payment into a
separate account of any monies payable in respect of a share shall not constitute the Company a trustee in
respect thercof For any person.

Financial Statements

The dircctors shall cause proper accounting records 1o be kept which must be sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s (ransactions, to disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the linancial posifion and
financial performance and to enable the direclors Lo ensure the financial statements comply with the
Ordinance.  The accounting records must contain:

(a) daily entries ol all sums of meney received and expended by the Company and the matters in respect of
which the receipt and expenditure takes place; and

(b) the asscts and liabilitics of the Company.

The accounting records shalt be kept al the registered office ol the Compuny or at such other place as the
directors think Ti, and shall always be open to the inspection of the dircclors.
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The directors shalt from time to time determine whether and 1o what extent and at what times and places and
under what conditions or regulations the accounting records ot the Company or any of them shall be open to
the inspection of members noi being directors, and no member {not being a director) shall have any right ol
inspecting any aceounting records of the Company except as confetred by statute or authorized by the
directors or by the Company in general meeting or pursuant to a court order.

The directors shall from time to time, n accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance, cause to he
prepared and to be laid before the Company in general meeting such financial statements, consolidated
financial statements (if any) and reports as are required by the Ordinance.

A copy of any financial statements which is to be laid before the Company in general meeting shall, not less
than 21 days before the date of the meeting, be sent to every member of, and every holder of debentures of,
the Company and to all persons other than members or holders of debentures of the Company, being persons
entitled to recetve notices of general meetings of the Company:

Provided that this Article shall not require a copy of those documents to be sent to any person of whose
address the Company s hot aware or to more than one of the joint hoiders of any shares or debentures.

Auditors
Auditors shall be appointed and their duties shall be regulated in the manner provided by the Ordinance.

If, in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company is not required to hold an anmnal
general mecting in respeet of a financial year, the cxisting auditors shall deent to be veappointed as auditors
ol the Company for the next financial year subject (o the exceplions specified in the Ordinance.

Capitalization of Profits

The Company in general mecting may upon the recommendation of the directors resolve that it is desirable
Lo capitalize any part of any money, investments or other assets for the time being standing to the credit of
any of the Company's reserve accounts or to the credit of the profit and loss account or otherwise available
for distribution, and accordingly that such sum be set free for distribution amongst the members who would
have been entitled thereto if distributed by way of dividend and in the same proporiions on condition that the
same be nol paid in cash but be applied either in or towards paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid
on any shares, debentures or debenture stock held by such members respectively or paying up in full
unissued shares or debentures or debenture stock of the Company to be allotted and distnibuted credited as
fully paid-up to and amongst such members in the proportions aforesaid, or partly in the one way and partly
in the other, and the directors shall give effect to such resolution,

Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed the directors shall make all appropriations
and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalized thereby and all allotments and issues of
futly-paid shares, debentures or debenture stock, if any, and generally shall de all acts and things required to
give effect thereto, with full power o the directors to make such provision by the issuc of fractional
certificates or by payment in cash or otherwise as they think fit for the case of shares, debentures or
debenture stock becoming distributable in fractions, and also to authorize any person to enter on behalf of all
the members entitled thercto into an agreement with the Company providing for the allotment to them
respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of any further shares, debentures or debenture stock 1o which they
may be entitied upon such capitalization, or (as the case may require) for the payment up by the Company on
their behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions of the profits reselved to be capitalized,
ol the amounts or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their existing shares, and any agreement
made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all such members.

Notices

Any notice or other document may be served or delivered by the Company upon any member by any of the
following means subjcet to and to such extent permitted by and in accordance with the Ordinance:

(a) personally;
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{B) by sending it through the post in a property prepaid [etter, envelope or wrapper addressed to a member
at his regisiered address as appearing in the register of members or specified for the purpose, or
regarded under a provision of the Ordinance as haviag been so specified lor the purpose;

{c) byhand to such address as aforesaid;

{d) Dby transmitting it by ¢lcctronic means 1o an address specified for the purpose by a member generally or
specifically, or regarded under a provision of the Ordinance as having been so specified for the purpose:
or

() by making it availabic on the Company’s website (if any), provided that. in cach case, a member has
agreed, generally or specifically, to the Company communicating with such member in such manner
and the agrecment has not been revoked.

The signature to any notice to be given by the Company may be written or printed.

Fach member shall, from time to titne, notify in writing to the Company some place which shall be deemed
his registered address within the meaning of the last preceding Article. A notice may be given by the
Company to the joint holders of a share by giving the notice to the joint holder first named in the register of
members in respect of the share,

Any notice or document given ot issued by or on behalf of the Company:

(a) if sent by post to a registered address in Hong Kong, shall be deemed to have been reccived on the day
following the envelope or wrapper containing the samce is put in the post.  In proving such service #
shall be sullicient 1o prove that the envelope or wrapper confaining the notice or document was
properly addressed and put in the post as prepaid mail;

{by if sent by post to a registered address outside Hong Kong, shall be deemed to have been received on the
fifth day following the envelope or wrapper containing the samc is put in the post.  In proving such
service it shall be sufficient to prove that the envelope or wrapper containing the notice or document
was pruperly addressed and pul in the pust as prepaid airmail;

{c) il nol sent by post bul delivered or left at the registered address by the Company, shall be deemed to
have been reccived on the day it was so delivered or feft;

(dy it sent by clectronic means, shall be decmed to have been received at the time when the notice or
document is transmitted clectronically provided that no notification that the clectronic communication
has not reached its recipicat has been received hy the sender, except that any failure in transmission
beyond the sender’s control shall nat invalidate the effectivencss of the notice or document being
served; and

{¢) if made available on the Company’s website, shall be deemed to have been served on the day on which
the notice or document is published on the Company’s website to which the entitled person may have
ACCCSS,

A member may, within 28 days after the date of receiving from the Company a notice or document,
otherwise than in hard copy form, request the Company 0 send or supply to the member the nolice or
document in hard copy form.  The Company must, upon rceeiving such request from a member. in
sceordance with the Ordinance. send or supply to such member such notice or document in hard copy form,
free of charge.

A nolice or document may be given by the Company to the persons entitled 1o a share in conseguence of the
death or bankruptey of & member by sending it through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to them by
name, or by the title of representatives of the deecased, or trustee of the bankrupt, ot by any like deseription,
at the address, i any, within Hong Kong supplied for the purpose by the persons elaiming to be so entitled,
or (until such an address has been so supplicd) by giving the notice in any manner in which the samc might
have been given if the death or bankruptey had not occurred.,

24



L58 Notice of every general meeting shall be given in any manner hereinbefore authorized to:

159

160

161

{02

{63

164

165

{a} every member of the Company;

{b) every person entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptey of' a member who, but for his
death or bankruptey, would be entitted to receive notice of the meeting;

(¢} every director of the Company; and
(d) the auditors for the time being of the Company.
Nuo other person shall be entitled to receive notices of general meetings.

Any summons, notice, order or other document required to be sent to or served upon the Company, or upon
any ofticer of the Company, may be sent or served by leaving lhe same or sending it through the post in a
prepaid letter, cavelope or wrapper, addressed to the Company or (o such oflicer at the registered ofTice.

The directors may from time to time speeify the form and mamer in which a notice, proxy or agreement to
written tesolution or other documents may be given to the Company by clectronte means, including one or
more addresses for the receipt of communications by electronic means generally or specifically, and may
prescribe such procedures as they think (it lTor verifying the auibenticity or integrity of any such
commuunication. A notice may be given to the Company by clectronic means only if it is given in
accordance with the requirements specified by the direciors.

Subject to any special provisions contained in these Articles or in the Ordinance, all notices required to be
given by advertiserment shall be advertised in at least one daily Chinese and one daily English newspuper in
Itong Kong,

Ih reckoning the period for any notice given under these Articles, the day on which nolice s served, or
deemed to be served and the day for which siteh notice is given shall be excluded.

Winding Up

I the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may with the sanction of a special resolution of the
Company and any other sanction required by the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance {Chapter 32), divide amongst the mewmbers in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of
the Company (whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or sot) and may, for such purpose, set
such value as he decms fair upon any property to be divided as aforcsaid and may determine how such
division shall be carried out as between the members or dilferent classes of members.  The liquidator may,
with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benelit of
the contributorics as the liguidator, with the like sanction, shall think fit, but so thal no member shall be
competled to accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any lability.

On any sale of the undertaking of the Company the directors or the liquidator on a winding up may, if
authorized by a special reselution, aceept fully or partly paid-up shares, debentures or securities o any other
company, cither then existing or to be formed for the purchase in whole or in part of the property of the
Company, and the directors (if the profits of the Company permit), or the liquidator (on a winding up), may
distribute such shares or securitics or any other properly of the Company amongst the members without
realization, or vest the same in trustees for them, and any special resolution may provide for the distribution
or appropriation of the cash, shares or other securities, benefits or property otherwise than in accordance
with the strict legat vights of the members or contributories ol the Company, and for the valuation of any
such securities or property at such price and in such manner as the meeting may approve; and all holders of
shares shall be bound to accept and shall be bound by any valuation or distribution so authorized and waive
all rights in refation thereto, save only, in case the Company is proposed to be or is in the course of being
wound up, such statutory rights (if any) ave incapable of being varied or excluded by these Articles,

in case any of the shares to be divided as aforesaid consist of shares which involve a liability to calls or
otherwise any person entitled under such division to any of the said shares may, within 10 days after the
passing of the special resolution, by notice in writing direct the liquidator 1o sell his propottion and pay himn
the net proceeds and the liquidator shall if practicable act accordingly.
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Indemnity
Every director or lormer direclor may be indemmnified out ol the Company’s asscts against any iability
incurred by him to a person other than the Company or an associated company of the Company in
connection with any negligence. default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the Company or
associied company (as the case may be),
The indemmity provided under the tast preceding Article docs not cover,
(a) any lability of the dircctor to pay:

(1) a Nnc imposed in criminal procecdings; or

(i) a sum payabic by way of a penalty in respect of non-compliance with any requirement of a
regudatory nature; or

(b} any tiability incurred by the director:
() indefending eriminal proceedings in which the director is convicted;

(1) in defending ol proceedings brought by the Company, or an associated company of the
Company, in which judgnient is given against the director;

(i) in defending civil proceedings brought on behalf of the Company by a member or of an associated
company of the Company. in which judgment is given against the dircctor;

{iv) in defending civil proceedings brought on behalf of an associated company of the Company by a
member of the associated company or by a member of an associated company of the associated
company, in which judgment is given against the director; or

(v} in conticction with an application for relief under the Comganies Ordinance (Chapter 32} as in
force from time to time before the commencement date of the Ordinance or under the Qrdinance

in which the courl refuscs to grant the director reficf.

Acreference inthe last preceding Article to a conviction, judgment or refusal of relict is a reference to the
final decision in the proceedings.

For the purposes of the last preceding Article, a conviction, judgment or refusal of relief:

{a} if notappealed against, becomes {inal at the end of the period for bringing an appeal: ar

{b) il appecaled against, becomes final when the appeal, or any further appeal, is disposed of.

For the purposcs of the last preceding Article, an appeal is disposed of if:

(a) itis determined, and the period for bringing any further appeal has ended: or

() it is abandoned or otherwise ceases Lo have effect.

FEvery sccretary, former sceretary, officer, former officer, auditors, former auditors and agent of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability incurted by him in
relation to the Company or associated companies in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application under
the Companics Ordinance (Chapter 32) as in force from lime (o time belore the comumencement date of the
Ordinance or under the Ordinance in which relief is granted to him by the court.

The dircctors may decide to purchasc and maintain insurance, at the expense of the Company, for a dircclor,

a former dircctor, a secretary, a former secrctary, an officer, a former officer, auditors, former auditors and
an agent of the Company or of an associated company, against
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(2) any liability to any person in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust
(exeept for frand) in relation to the Company or associated company (as the case may be); or

(b} any liability incurred in defending any proceedings (whether civil or eriminat) for any negligence,

default, breach of duty or breach of trust (including fraud) in refation to the Company or associated
company (as the case may be).
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Maxam Tire International Limited

Period from 14 July, 2015
(date of incorporation) to 31 December, 2015



{date of incorporation) to 31 December, 2013

Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their first report together with the audited
financial statements for the period from 14 July, 2015 (date of incorporation) to
31 December, 2015.

Principal place of business

Maxam Tire Intermational Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of business at
3806 Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Principal activity
The Company remains inactive throughout the period.
Share capital

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) on 14 July, 2015 with a share capital of US$1. One
ordinary share was issued in accordance with Memorandum and Articles of Association.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the period from 14
July, 2015 (date of incorporation) to 31 December, 2015.

Directoxs

The directors during the financial period and up to the date of this report were:

Radek Costa-Sarnicki (appointed on 14 July, 2015) (resigned on 11 April, 2016)
Ji Changkun (appointed on 14 July, 2015)

Martin West (appointed on 14 July, 2015)

Michelle Bamford (appointed on 11 Apnl, 2016)

There being no provision in the Company’s articles of association in connection with the
retirement of directors, all existing directors continue in office for the following year.

Indemnity of director

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the director of the Company is currently in force and was in
force throughout this period.



Period from 14 July, 2015
{date aof incorporation) to 31 December, 2015

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the period or at any time during
the period.

Directors’ interests in shares

At no time during the period was the Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Management contracts

No contracts conceming the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.
Auditor
KPMG were first appointed as auditor of the Company in 20135.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting,

By order of the board

Micheile Bamford
Hong Kong, 2 7 JUN 2016



JERY TRV TR d]

Independent auditor’s report to the sole shareholder of

Maxam Tire International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Maxam Tire Intemnational Limited (“the
Cormpany™) set out on pages 5 to 16, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 December, 2015, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity for the period from 14 July, 2015 (date of incorporation) to
31 December, 2015 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors detenmine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Anditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from matenial misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Independent auditor’s report to the sole shareholder of

Maxam Tire International Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December, 2015 and of the Company’s financial performance
for the period from 14 July, 2015 (date of incorporation) to 31 December, 2015 in
accordance with the applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards relevant to
these financial statements and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

VoL e
‘(\’. ‘L'-‘Jm\’

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 JUN 2015
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(date of incorporation} to 31 December, 2015

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the period from 14 July, 2015

(date of incorporation) 31 December, 2015
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Period from

14 July, 2015

(date of

incorporation)

to 31 December,

Note 2015
Administrative and other operating expenses 3 (14,631)
Loss before taxation 2 $ (14,631)
Income tax 3 -

Loss and total comprehensive income

for the period $ ~ (14,631)

The notes on pages 8 to 16 form part of these financial statements.



Financial statemenis for the period from 14 July, 2015
{date of incorporation) to 3! December, 2015

Statement of financial position at 31 December, 2015
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Note 2015
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary 5 $ !
Current liabilities
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 6 $ (4,631)
Other payables 7 (10,000)

§-_ ) (14, 1_3‘1-)
NET LIABILITIES $ (14,630)
CAPITAL AND RESERVE 8
Share capital $ !
Reserve (14,631)
TOTAL EQUITY $ (14,630)
2 7 JUN 2016

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

2 - \\ -
Michelle Bamford k\} ERLW ‘\. ~Aod

Ji Changkun W/ @f_,
T4

Directors

St Ve’ St et et

The notes on pages 8 to 16 form part of these financial statements.



(date of incorporation) to 3] December, 2013

Statement of changes in equity
for the period from 14 July, 2015

(date of incorporation) 31 December, 2015
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Share Accumulated

capital losses
(note 8(b))

Balance at 14 July, 2015

(date of incorporation) $ - 8 -
Changes in equity for 2015:
[ssuance of new share 1 -
Loss and total comprehensive

income for the period - (14,631)
Balance at 31 December,

2015 $ 1 § (14,631

The notes on pages 8 to 16 form part of these financial statements.

Total equity
$ .
1

(14,631)

§  (14,630)
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(date of r'nco‘rpomtr"on) to 31 December, 2015

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Company’s results and
financial position for the current and prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period (note 12).

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

For the purposes of compliance with sections 379 and 380 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), these financial statements have been prepared to present a true and
fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Company only.
Consequently, they have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs, which term collectively includes Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) that are
relevant to the preparation of company level financial statements by an intermediate
parent company.

As the Company is a holding company that is a wholly owned subsidiary of another
corporate body, it satisfies the exemption criteria set out in section 379(3)(a) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and is therefore not required to prepare
consolidated financial statements.

Given the above, these financial statements are not prepared for the purposes of
compliance with HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements, so far as the preparation
of consolidated financial statements is concerned. As a consequence, the financial
statements do not give all the information required by HKFRS 10 about the economic
activities of the group of which the Company is the parent.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis.

The preparation of financtal statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

At 31 December, 2015, the Company had net liabilities of $14,630, the ultimate parent of
the Company, has confirmed that it intends to provide or procure such financial assistance
as is necessary to enable the Company to continue to operate as a going concern and to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due for a period of at least 12 months from 31
December, 2015. The directors believe that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As a result, the directors have prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. These financial
statements are presented in United States dollars (USS$), which is the Company’s
functional currency.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Cash flow statement

A cash flow statement has not been prepared for the period from 14 July, 2015 (date of
incorporation) to 31 December, 2015 because the Company did not have any cash flows
during the period nor did it have any cash or cash equivalents at any point throughout the
period.

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax. Current tax is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation 1s disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies and non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are state at fair value are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Company if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company’s parent.

10
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

®

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

v)

(vi)
(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key

management personnel services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration

Legal fees

Period from

14 July, 2015
(date of
incorporation)
to 31 December,
2015

$ 10,000
4,631

11
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Income tax in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Taxation charged to profit or loss:

Period from
14 July, 2015
(date of
incorporation)
to 31 December,
2015
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the period $ -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2015 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the current period.

Reconciliation between tax expense charged to profit or loss and accounting profit at
applicable tax rate:

Period from

14 July, 2015
(date of
incorporation)
to 31 December,
2015

Loss before taxation $ (14,631)

Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated at 16.5% $ (2,414)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 2,414

Actual tax expense $ -

12
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Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Period from
14 July, 2015
(date of
incorporation)
to 31 December,
2015
Directors’ fees $ -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind -
Discretionary bonuses -
Retirement scheme contributions -
Investment in a subsidiary
2015
Unlisted shares, at cost $ 1
Details of the subsidiary are as follows:
Proportion of
ownership
Place of  Particulars interest
incorporation of paid up held by Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the company activity
* Maxam Tire Solutions United Kingdom US$1 100% Provision of
Limited administrative

support service
* The company is not audited by KPMG,
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and expected to be settled
within one year or on demand.

Other payables

Other payables are expected to be settled within one year.

13
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Capital and reserve
Components of the Company’s capital and reserve

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the
Company’s equity is set out in the statement of changes in equity.

Share capital

Issued share capital

2015
No. of shares Amount
$
Ordinary share, issued and fully paid:
At 14 July, 2015 (date of incorporation)
and 31 December, 2015 1 $

i
i

The holder of ordinary share is entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and is entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Capital management

The Company’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. As the Company is part of a
larger group, the Company’s sources of additional capital and policies for distribution of
excess capital may also be affected by the group’s capital management objectives.

The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity plus any long term
debentures and any loans from other group companies with no fixed terms of repayment,
less unaccrued proposed dividends. Trading balances that arise as a result of trading
transactions with other group companies are not regarded by the Company as capital.

The Company’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to
the capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs.
Adjustments are made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions
affecting the Company or the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the
directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company or the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

14
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal course of the Company’s
business. The Company’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Company to manage these risks are described below.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

All of the Company’s financial liabilities are required to pay within one year or on
demand. The total contractual undiscounted cash flow of these financial liabilities equals
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

Fair values measurement

All of the financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December, 2015.

Material related party transactions
Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel represents the directors of the Company and their
remuneration is disclosed in note 4.

Other related party transactions

Except for the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Company did not enter into other material related party transactions
during the period.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December, 2015, the directors counsider the immediate parent and ultimate
controlling party of the Company to be GOMA International Corp. and Sailun Jinyu
Group Co Ltd respectively. GOMA International Corp. is incorporated in Canada.
Sailun Jinyu Group Co Ltd is incorporated in the People’s Republic of China and
produces financial statements available for public use.

15
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the period ended 31 December, 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a few
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the period ended
31 December, 2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Company’s
results of operations and financial position.
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